
MCHENRY COUNTY 

BOARD OF HEALTH 

MINUTES ● JULY 27, 2020 

 Regular Meeting County Board Conference Room 6:30 PM 

  667 Ware Rd, Administration Building, Woodstock, IL 60098 

McHenry County Page 1 Updated 9/11/2020 1:06 PM  

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
Meeting called to order at: 6:30 PM by William Stinson. 
 
PRESENT: McCann, Lorenc, Stinson, Gaffney, Clarke, Morawski, Marcussen, Casner, Adamson, 
Gugle (Remote), Nomm (Remote), Karras, Buthod (Remote), Howell, Volant 
ABSENT: Faccone, Lin, Amsler 
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT 

Rehana Mohammed Smith, who is working with Free from Harm and Slaughter Free Chicago spoke to board 

members about the proposed slaughter house coming to Marengo. She stated the owner of the proposed business 

currently operates a slaughter house in Chicago, with a long track record of complaints and violations. Ms. Smith 

stated that COVID-19 and other viruses can be transmitted from animals. Ms. Smith questioned the purpose of 

bringing in a business that will pollute the air, contaminate our water and soil, as well as lower property values.   
 
Ms. Heather Friedu also spoke about Community Farms, LLC, which is the slaughter house proposed to open in 

Marengo. Ms. Friedu said she is not certain how far along the business is in the approval process, but she wants 

the public to be aware that this slaughter house may be approved for opening and would like to see the 

community voice their opinions on this matter. She voiced her concerns about health and environmental issues, 

hazardous working conditions and the spread of disease. 
 
Ms. Gaffney told board members that due to previous complaints made by an ex-employee, Animal Services and 

Assistance Programs Inc. requested a hearing in order to be judged by the State. The judge stated there were no 

violations of the Animal Welfare Act and no fines were issued. 
 
Dr. Stinson introduced and welcomed new Board of Health member David Casner to the meeting. Dr. Stinson also 

informed the Board that another new Board member has been appointed, Dr. Barbara Amsler.  

3. MINUTES APPROVAL 

A. Board of Health - Regular Meeting - Jun 22, 2020 6:30 PM 

RESULT: ACCEPTED BY VOICE 

4. DIVISION UPDATES 

Ms. Adamson stated we are continuing to respond to COVID-19 questions and complaints as well as preparing for 

contact tracing. The State has paired McHenry County with Lake County into Region 9.  Ms. Adamson said that 

McHenry and Lake County Public Health Administrators and County Administrators are working together to 

develop coordinated responses and messaging.  Ms. Adamson said there are various mitigation options available 

to regions to implement as a way to reduce case rates and further transmission. The State is monitoring county 

and regional metrics for a sustained increased in 7 day rolling average in the positivity rate and either a sustained 7 



Minutes McHenry County Board of Health July 27, 2020 

McHenry County Page 2 Updated 9/11/2020 1:06 PM  

day increase in hospital admissions for COVID 19 like illnesses or reduction in hospital capacity below 20%, or 3 

consecutive days averaging greater than or equal to 8% positivity rate.  Ms. Adamson noted Region 9 is currently at 

4.7% and seeing increases.   
 
Dr. Stinson asked how the positivity rate is determined. Ms. Karras explained the State has changed its 

methodology multiple times. McHenry County is adjusting how it calculates/reports the data to meet the new 

State definitions, including antibody testing, if symptomatic. Staff will be meeting with the State in order to ensure 

methodology is consistent.  
 
There was discussion around the timing of reporting. Adamson added there is a delay in reporting metrics on the 

State side compared to what MCDH reports daily.  
 
The first recycling event of the season was held in Harvard last weekend. Ms. Nomm reported everyone including 

the vendors were wearing masks and social distancing and people were staying in their cars. The event drew about 

250 people in a 3 hour period.  
 
Ms. Nomm told board members that the Environmental Health Division would be implementing residential water 

testing beginning in August in their laboratory. Ms. Nomm said over the past 2 years several of the labs in the area 

have closed. There is a demand for this service and there are very few options for county residents.   
 
The Nursing Division has been involved with helping schools to reopen and Ms. Karras said they are getting ready 

to release some information developed by the School Nurse Task Force. Ms. Karras said the division is working to 

return to usual services such as vaccinations for school age children, but have had to pull staff to work on the 

COVID response due to a drop in volunteers. The Division had been working with approximately 11 to 12 

volunteers helping with case investigations every day and now are down to 6 or 7. Ms. Karras said they are pressed 

to meet the demands of the increases in cases and are running a bit behind.  
 
Ms. Howell said Katie Evans has been hired as the new Volunteer Coordinator/Health Educator.  
 
Ms. Howell said they are working on opening the Adoption Center. This would be the first time the general public 

has been in the building beyond the front lobby. Animal Control is also working on having a permanent barrier 

installed at the front desk. 
 
The Department is having difficulty filling the open kennel positions. It currently isn’t a problem because there are 

no animals available for adoption. Ms. Howell said there may be more applications once the unemployment bonus 

is over at the end of the month.  
 
 Ms.Howell stated Animal Control is interested in holding a low-cost vaccine and microchip drive-thru clinic this 

fall. There have been some discussions regarding the logistics of the event and what would work best.  Ms. Howell 

added that the Department has always been able to provide this service to our clients and would like to continue 

to do so.  
 
Mr. Clarke made a suggestion to extend the exemption for registration for 30 days from the due date for people 

who are behind in their animal’s registration due to COVID-19.  
 
Ms. Howell was asked how the cat registration is progressing. She stated they are slowly progressing. They have 

not written any tickets yet.  

5. CONSENT AGENDA 



Minutes McHenry County Board of Health July 27, 2020 

McHenry County Page 3 Updated 9/11/2020 1:06 PM  

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Joseph Clarke 

SECONDER: Kyle Marcussen 

AYES: McCann, Lorenc, Stinson, Gaffney, Clarke, Morawski, Marcussen, Casner 

ABSENT: Faccone, Lin, Amsler 

A. Disbursements 

B. Income & Expenses 

C. Administrator Report 

D. ADM Division Report 

E. ENV Division Report 

F. PHN Division Report 

G. VPH Division Report 

H. Jacobs High School, Mass Dispensing-MOU 

6. NORTHWESTERN MEDICINE DISBURSEMENTS 

1. Northwestern Medicine Disbursements 

RESULT: APPROVED [6 TO 0] 

MOVER: Cindy Gaffney 

SECONDER: Juliana Morawski 

AYES: McCann, Gaffney, Clarke, Morawski, Marcussen, Casner 

ABSTAIN: Lorenc, Stinson 

ABSENT: Faccone, Lin, Amsler 

7. CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS - NEW 

A. Harvard Community Senior Center-MOU 

Ms. Karras explained that the Community Center reached out to the Department to be a partner recipient of 

the grant from Cultivating Health Ministries Project. The Department would provide A1C testing and would 

receive $25.00 per test, not to exceed $16,500. Ms. Karras said we can recruit individuals to participate in our 

Diabetic Prevention Program. This project would help the Department to achieve one of the strategic goals of 

reducing obesity and diabetes to the vulnerable population that the Community Center serves.  
 
Ms. McCann said she spoke with Harvard Community Center and Carol Waggoner regarding this project and 

said they would like to integrate this grant with Senior Services grant money to hone in on senior health and 

isolation issues. 



Minutes McHenry County Board of Health July 27, 2020 

McHenry County Page 4 Updated 9/11/2020 1:06 PM  

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Joseph Clarke 

SECONDER: Ted Lorenc 

AYES: McCann, Lorenc, Stinson, Gaffney, Clarke, Morawski, Marcussen, Casner 

ABSENT: Faccone, Lin, Amsler 

B. Meridian Health Plan of Illinois, Inc. 

Ms. Karras stated this contract will be replacing the existing DCFS contract Healthworks, to provide medical 

case management to Youth in Care. The State has now privatized this program and Meridian is taking over the 

case management.  

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Kyle Marcussen 

SECONDER: Mary McCann 

AYES: McCann, Lorenc, Stinson, Gaffney, Clarke, Morawski, Marcussen, Casner 

ABSENT: Faccone, Lin, Amsler 

C. GovTemps-McHenry County-Employees Leasing Agreement 

Gov Temps is a temporary employment agency that will be contracted to hire contact tracers and other 

positions related to COVID19 investigations. Ms. Karras stated this contract is pending approval from the 

States Attorney’s Office. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Mary McCann 

SECONDER: Juliana Morawski 

AYES: McCann, Lorenc, Stinson, Gaffney, Clarke, Morawski, Marcussen, Casner 

ABSENT: Faccone, Lin, Amsler 

8. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Waystar 

Ms. Karras explained this contract is similar to the contract that was brought before the board prior to the 

State’s Attorney’s Office approval of the contract. There is an issue with Item #17 that we can’t come to an 

agreement on regarding the venue for arbitration. If any arbitration needs to take place, the contract states 

the arbitration will take place in Kentucky. The State’s Attorney’s Office wants arbitration to be held in our 

Circuit Court.  
 
Ms. Adamson stated Waystar is a clearinghouse for all third party electronic billing. Waystar handles our 

regional insurance companies and therefore, the Department really doesn’t have any other options.  
 
Mr. Clarke said that since this would be going through the American Arbitration Association, arbitration can 

take place in a neutral location.  
 
Ms. Karras noted that Waystar’s attorneys were willing to remain silent on the contract. The McHenry Count 

State’s Attorney has indicated that the location can be left open and decided at that time. 
   



Minutes McHenry County Board of Health July 27, 2020 

McHenry County Page 5 Updated 9/11/2020 1:06 PM  

The Board further discussed the language in the contract and noted the potential for costs associated with 

arbitration in Kentucky. It was noted that the contract allows the prevailing party to recoup costs associated 

with arbitration. The possibility of virtual arbitration was also suggested. After further discussion, it was 

deemed low risk with no strong objections to moving forward with the contract.  

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Kyle Marcussen 

SECONDER: Mary McCann 

AYES: McCann, Lorenc, Stinson, Gaffney, Clarke, Morawski, Marcussen, Casner 

ABSENT: Faccone, Lin, Amsler 

B. Position Statement 

Ms. Adamson stated the Department continues to receive complaints and expects more as schools open and if 

numbers increase. The purpose is to further refine the Board’s position on responses to complaints to set 

expectations with the public. We continue to maintain law enforcement is the primary enforcement entity for 

DCEO guidelines. We would like the statement to reflect what our capabilities are and add language about our 

educational strategies.  
 
Ms. Karras was asked what kind of involvement the Department has with the schools in the county. Ms. Karras 

noted the Department has a good relationship with the schools and has set up meetings with superintendents 

to discuss future COVID-19 issues that will come up. The Department would be involved if there was an 

outbreak at a school doing contact tracing, consulting and outbreak investigation.  
 
Ms. Karras said the Department has a School Task Force and they can consult with schools to help develop 

their re-opening plan, answer questions and offer information and recommendations. ISBE has core guidelines 

that schools need to use to develop their re-opening plans. All schools, public and private must have some 

type of plan available. Pre-schools work a little differently but many of the pre-schools that are tied to schools 

are following the guidelines. 
 
Ms. Karras stated it’s important to keep the lines of communication open. She added that it is under the 

school’s jurisdiction to handle any school related complaints. Ms. Adamson said there are a lot of questions 

that the State still needs to answer regarding testing and what the schools will require for testing. The schools’ 

plans may need to be changed as further issues come up.  
 
Mr. Marcussen stated his concern that the guidelines for schools are too broad and too vague and he 

suggested the Department-in addition to the coordination we are already engaging in-maintain a close eye on 

the school population and have some type of mechanism in place to enforce closure if some schools aren’t 

willing to do so.  
 
It was suggested that a database of all schools in the district with contact names regarding COVID-19 

questions and concerns be posted on our website with links to each District’s plan so it’s accessible to the 

general public. Ms. Adamson said she would look into that idea further. 
 
The State is encouraging education when dealing with non-compliant parties and the Environmental Health 

practitioners are following up on complaints and continuing to try to educate the food establishments on how 

to be compliant.   
 



Minutes McHenry County Board of Health July 27, 2020 

McHenry County Page 6 Updated 9/11/2020 1:06 PM  

Mr. Marcussen stated there have been several repeat offender businesses as it relates to requiring masks for 

patrons and employees, as well as capacity limits. Mr. Marcussen urged the Board and the Department to 

undertake additional enforcement action up to and including closure on repeat offenders of the Executive 

Order. 
 
Ms. Nomm said our authority is very clear in the Department’s food ordinance for food sanitation and related 

issues, but we don’t have any authority to enforce guidelines that businesses refuse to follow.  The 

Department does not have the capacity to enforce non-compliance issues in regards to the State Executive 

Order, although technically the Department can close food establishments. 
 
Ms. Adamson stated we can’t put our staff in harm’s way for non-compliance issues and that is why education 

is so important so businesses will understand why their compliance is important to the community. Ms. 

Adamson believes that most people don’t want to take a step backwards, but there may not be a choice if the 

region or state numbers continue to increase.  

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Joseph Clarke 

SECONDER: Kyle Marcussen 

AYES: McCann, Lorenc, Stinson, Gaffney, Clarke, Morawski, Marcussen, Casner 

ABSENT: Faccone, Lin, Amsler 

9. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Fees & Refunds 

Ms. Nomm told board members that Environmental Health is running into some issues on refunds, primarily 

with temporary health permits. The Board allowed extensions on health permits in order for businesses to 

have some additional time to pay. Ms. Nomm stated she is looking for some direction from the Board as to 

how temporary health permits should be handled. The office has been inundated with requests for refunds 

due to cancellations related to COVID-19. Ms. Nomm said they would like to stay consistent throughout the 

year and treat the operators identically.  
 
Ms. Nomm suggested a more lenient approach to the refunds this year due to the financial difficulties with a 

lot of the food operators, with an educational effort throughout the year so the food establishments will be 

aware of what to expect in the new year. If a food operator paid for a food cart or mobile but were unable to 

use it throughout the year, then she would recommend issuing a full refund for this year. She also suggested 

tabling the re-inspections fees until 2021.   
 
Mr. Clarke asked Ms. Nomm about the loss of revenue. Ms. Nomm also said primarily the revenue on 

temporary food establishments is $ 35,000-$50,000. Normally we have about 800-1,000 applications per year 

but this year we had 100-110 applications and requests for refunds of approximately 30% of those 

applications. We may have had some administrative costs for the permit, but no field work has been 

completed because the events have been cancelled well in advance.  
 
The Board recommended that for fiscal year 2020 temporary permits that are cancelled with no labor hours 

will receive a full refund.   



Minutes McHenry County Board of Health July 27, 2020 

McHenry County Page 7 Updated 9/11/2020 1:06 PM  

RESULT: PRESENTED 

B. TB Board 

Ms. Adamson informed board members that the TB Board is a 3 member board and has had challenges in the 

past 2 years of achieving a quorum. They meet every other month and they recently had 2 members resign. 

Ms. Adamson asked if our board would be interested in merging the two boards. We would have to add 3 

members to our board, which would make it a 15 member board. Ms. Adamson said the County Board would 

also need to support this. The Board of Health would manage the TB program but the function of the TB Board 

wouldn’t change. Mr. Clarke suggested asking the State’s Attorney’s Office for direction on adding the TB 

member to our board without increasing our board to 15 and we can add this to our September Board of 

Health meeting agenda.  

RESULT: PRESENTED 

C. Fiscal Year 2021 Proposed Budget 

Dr. Lorenc explained some information that was discussed at the Finance Committee Meeting. Dr. Lorenc 

informed everyone that the variances are numbers that have been redistributed to other areas for accuracy. 

Ms. Adamson went over the summary page stating that projected revenues were up a bit as well as projected 

expenses. She said the county requested a maintenance budget so there may be some additional changes to 

the budget.  
 
Ms. Adamson reviewed the request for a new position of Assistant Manager, Kennel Operations in Animal 

Control and the position hours change for the Community Information Coordinator. Ms. Adamson explained 

the variances including hitting different revenue lines to better reflect where those amounts belong. She 

reviewed the budget with members, discussed how COVID-19 may affect the budget and answered questions 

throughout the review.  

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Mary McCann 

SECONDER: Cindy Gaffney 

AYES: McCann, Lorenc, Stinson, Gaffney, Clarke, Morawski, Marcussen, Casner 

ABSENT: Faccone, Lin, Amsler 

10. BOARD ISSUES 

Dr. Stinson remarked that he was not surprised that long term care facilities made up 81% of deaths from COVID-

19 in McHenry County in comparison to 55% statewide as was stated in Cal Skinner’s letter.  
 
Mr. Marcussen said he was surprised that the deaths were so high in long term care facilities in the county and was 

impressed that Valley Hi had no deaths at their facility. Ms. McCann said Valley Hi had a COVID-19 plan right away. 

Some of the possible reasons for the higher numbers were briefly discussed.  
 
Ms. McCann said the board is still planning on having a meeting with the residents of 300 West in Marengo. Ms. 

McCann and Mr. Marcussen visited the some of the neighbors and said the meeting might be held outdoors in 

order to accommodate a large group of people. Ms. McCann briefly explained the packet that was distributed to 

Board of Health members.  
 



Minutes McHenry County Board of Health July 27, 2020 

McHenry County Page 8 Updated 9/11/2020 1:06 PM  

Ms. McCann stated the county has approximately 20 apple orchards that are interested in holding apple-picking 

festivals in September. It was suggested that the Department could issue some guidelines and possibly some 

educational programs for the owners, similar to the ones that were given to food establishments. Ms. McCann said 

it would be helpful for the owners to have some guidelines to follow and the owners might not realize the impact 

large crowds could have on the county. 

11. INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATIONS 

12. EXECUTIVE SESSION (AS NECESSARY) 

Motion made by Mr. Clarke, second by Ms. McCann to go into Executive Session at 9:50 pm. Motion 
approved unanimously by voice vote.  
 
Motion made by Ms. McCann, second by Mr. Marcussen to go out of Executive Session at 10:25 pm. 
Motion approved unanimously by a voice vote. 
 
Motion made by Ms. McCann, second by Mr. Marcussen to go into Regular Session at 10:25 pm. Motion 
approved unanimously by a voice vote.  

13. APPENDIX 

A. Media Detail 

RESULT: PRESENTED 

B. Webstat 

RESULT: PRESENTED 

C. ENV Well/Septic Report 

RESULT: PRESENTED 

D. ENV Lab Report 

RESULT: PRESENTED 

E. PHN Reports 

RESULT: PRESENTED 

F. VPH Reports 

RESULT: PRESENTED 

14. ADJOURNMENT 

 Motion to adjourn meeting at 10:25 pm by Ms. Morawski, second by Mr. Marcussen. Motion approved 
unanimously by voice vote. 


